Minutes of the Workshop Meeting of September 6, 2012

Page 4

UNAPPROVED

CITY OF BLAINE

ANOKA COUNTY, MINNESOTA

WORKSHOP

CITY COUNCIL MEETING NO. 12-49
Thursday, September 6, 2012
6:30 P.M.

Cloverleaf Farm Room

10801 Town Square Drive

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Ryan at 6:30 p.m.  
PRESENT:  Councilmembers Bourke, Clark (arrived at 6:32 p.m.), Kolb, Herbst, Hovland, Swanson, and Mayor Ryan.
ABSENT:  None.
Quorum Present.

ALSO PRESENT:  Clark Arneson, City Manager; Patrick Sweeney, City Attorney; Bob Therres, Public Services Manager; Bryan Schafer, Community Development Director; Joe Huss, Finance Director; Ward Brown, Finance Director; Steffan Higgins, Assistant City Engineer; Chris Olson, Safety Service Manager/Police Chief; Nyle Zikmund, S/B/M Fire Chief; Al Thorp, Senior Engineering Technician; Jane Cross, City Clerk and Recording Secretary Linda Dahlquist.   
Potential Sidewalk Design Project Using Statewide Health Improvement Program (SHIP) Grant Funds
Public Services Manager Therres stated Anoka County selected Blaine to receive an $18,000 Statewide Health Improvement Program (SHIP) grant.  He stated a sidewalk project was identified on the east side of Polk Street from 97th Lane to Clover Leaf Parkway.  The sidewalk would serve as a link to safely connect the 225 plus residences in the Sandpiper manufactured housing community to the existing City trail and sidewalk system at the Polk Street and Clover Leaf Parkway intersection.  He noted SHIP funds cannot be used to fund capital improvements or construction projects; however, they can be used to pay for staff time associated with the design of a qualified capital improvement or construction project.  He stated additional funding is estimated to be between $55,000-65,000 for construction would have to be identified and a possible source could be Municipal State Aide funds. 
Councilmember Hovland left the meeting at 6:31 p.m. and returned at 6:34 p.m.
Councilmember Clark arrived at 6:32 p.m.

Councilmember Kolb asked when the road was redone.  Public Services Manager Therres stated the road was redone 2 years ago.  Councilmember Kolb commented the road would not need to be redone for at least 10 years.
Councilmember Swanson asked how long the City can let the design work sit.  Public Services Manager Therres there is no stipulation.  
Councilmember Clark asked if the sidewalk is part of an existing sidewalk plan and asked where funds come from to build the sidewalk.  Public Services Manager Therres stated no, it is a state aid route and the City can use state aid funds.  
Councilmember Swanson stated the City already has a lot of sidewalk maintenance.  

Councilmember Bourke stated the City does not have funds to do this project.

Councilmember Hovland stated he would like to choose a place where the sidewalk is really needed and asked if the funds be used for something else.  Public Services Manager Therres stated the parameters are around design and not construction.

Mayor Ryan commented there would be special assessments.
Councilmember Clark asked if the funds could be used at the Park at Four Seasons.  

Public Services Manager Therres stated the staff will look for other alternatives.  

Discussion on Requests for Proposals (RFPs)
City Manager Arneson stated the City has 41 professional service contracts and 11 professional services.  
He stated the Anoka County assessing services contract goes through next year.  Anoka County requires a one-year notice of cancellation, which would be December 2012.  He stated the contract is for five years (negotiable).  He stated it would take the City four and a half staff members to do assessing for the City.  
Councilmember Swanson asked if the City hired the staff would the cost be comparable.  City Manager Arneson stated no, not for $348,000.  Mayor Ryan stated it would be costly for the City to do assessing service.  Councilmember Herbst commented he did not believe the County designates 4.5 staff members to Blaine.  He speculated the County’s cost covers assessment court cases.  City Manager Arneson commented the City would need additional legal services for assessments.
Councilmember Bourke commented he would like to review all of the City’s contracts.

City Manager Arneson stated the Center for Energy & Environment contract is expiring and is out for RFP.  He stated any savings will go to the EDA. Councilmember Clark asked about the Center for Energy’s contract value.  Financial Director Huss replied the range is between $15,000-$25,000 annually over the last three years.  
City Manager Arneson stated there were no other bids in the past for Council minute taking other than TimeSaver, so there will be no RFP.  He stated Twin City Christian Homes' contract expires in December 2012 and is out for RFP.  He noted there are not a lot of firms doing this service, but any savings will go to the EDA.  He stated the HLB Tautges, Redpath contract is up this year and he is requesting the Council to not do an RFP because it will cost the City to switch auditors.  
Councilmember Clark questioned Anoka County’s five-year contract and what it includes (support staff, computer system, legal, etc.).

Councilmember Bourke asked if all professional services have contracts and agreements are iron clad.  City Manager Arneson stated some are contracts and some are repeated profession services (i.e., E. G. Rud).
Councilmember Swanson asked on the RPFs – Professional Services listing if all are contracts.  City Manager Arneson replied all are contracted except for McGough Facility Management.  Public Services Manager Therres replied McGough Facility Management is a monthly agreement and has been with the City since moving into the building.

Councilmember Hovland stated the Council needs to establish a method of review for RFPs for the cost and the services received.  He stated some contracts should come to the Council for review and some would not have to come back.  He questioned how the RFPs are publicized.  Councilmember Kolb stated some of the contracts are small and it would take more staff time to create an RFP.  Councilmember Herbst questioned the advertisement of RFPs in the general construction bulletin.  Councilmember Clark suggested staff searching the internet and sending emails to the companies for bids.  City Manager Arneson commented larger cities have a purchasing manager doing this work and government purchasing has policies and procedure rules to follow.  Councilmember Bourke asked if existing staff could do this work.  Finance Director Huss replied this type of work would take existing staff members away from their work.  Councilmember Clark suggested using an intern to do research work.  

Councilmember Hovland left the meeting at 7:04 p.m. and returned at 7:05 p.m.

City Manager Arneson stated the minimum threshold for an RFP is $10,000.  Councilmember Herbst suggested a workshop on contracts and RFPs.  Councilmember Kolb commented when contracts go out to bid, the City risks an increase.

Mayor Ryan asked about staff charges at Menards on accounts payable.  Finance Director Huss replied Menards has an authorized list of City staff for purchases.
Councilmember Herbst questioned Critical Connections with the Wetland Banking Project.  Public Services Manager Therres responded the City has a five-year work plan agreement.
Councilmember Herbst questioned E.G. Rud & Sons for surveying.  Public Services Manager Therres stated the City does not have surveyors on City staff.

Mayor Ryan questioned Embedded Systems.  Police Chief Olson replied they are the sole provider of this service.
Councilmember Clark commented he would like to see a list of the bidders on the contract listing.

Mayor Ryan asked if the detox people are still transported to Hastings.  Police Chief Olson replied yes and Anoka County pays half the cost.  He stated Hastings’ police will meet Blaine’s officer half way.
Councilmember Hovland questioned CHESS, Inc. for internal building safety.  City Manager Arneson replied the City does not have a safety officer or a trained professional on OSHA law.  He stated the City does have a safety committee.  Councilmember Clark commented MN SHARP provides safety training to corporations possibly at no charge.  Mayor Ryan commented someone pays for the service.  He stated the Senior Center had two inspections this week on Anoka County food inspection and VOA inspection.  

City Manager Arneson noted the City’s memberships are also on the professional services list (i.e., North Metro Mayors Association).
Council consensus is for staff to bring the contracts over $10,000 and completed RFPs to workshop for Council review.

Mayor Ryan stated contracts that have only one company responding should not require an RFP.

Councilmember Herbst asked if there are escape clauses included in the long-term (over three years) contracts.  City Manager Arneson replied there are performance-based escape clauses.
Councilmember Clark summarized the Council wants staff  to give routine updates on RFPs, clean-up the master list and review with Council two times per year, review the long-term contracts (three years and over) and give updates on contract extensions. 
OTHER BUSINESS

The Workshop adjourned at 7:30 p.m. 







Tom Ryan, Mayor

ATTEST:

Jane M. Cross, CMC, City Clerk

Submitted by TimeSaver Off Site Secretarial, Inc.

